
CCSS – 8/11/2020 – Approved Minutes Page 1 of 4 

COUNCIL STUDY SESSION MINUTES 
Zoom Video Conference 

www.milwaukieoregon.gov
AUGUST 11, 2020 

Council Present by Video: Council President Angel Falconer; Councilors Lisa Batey, Wilda Parks, Kathy Hyzy, 

Mayor Mark Gamba 

Tree Board Members Present by Video: Chair Kathleen Brennan-Hunter, Gina Dake, Jon Brown 

Staff Present 

by Video: 

City Attorney Justin Gericke  

City Manager Ann Ober 

City Recorder Scott Stauffer 

Climate Action & Sustainability Coordinator Natalie Rogers 

Public Works Director Peter Passarelli   

Mayor Gamba called the meeting to order at 5:16 p.m. 

1. Public Tree Code – Discussion

Mr. Passarelli explained that staff and the Tree Board had been working to revise the 
public tree code. He discussed the process of re-writing the code and asked for Council 
clarification on fees, low-income assistance, and programmatic permits.  

Mr. Passarelli reviewed the proposed updates to Milwaukie Municipal Code (MMC) 
Chapter 16.32 Tree Cutting. He discussed the Tree Board’s belief that healthy street 
trees should not be removed, noted the benefits of street trees, and explained that the 
proposed code changes were meant to protect street trees. 

Mayor Gamba and Mr. Passarelli discussed the cost benefit analysis for different 
projects that may require the removal of a tree. Mayor Gamba expressed concern 
about the city setting a precedent to remove trees, or not, that developers may follow. 
He urged the group to consider the city’s tree removal policy carefully. Ms. Ober 
recalled previous discussions about increasing the tree removal cost as the size and 
diameter of the tree increased, in hopes to preserve older trees. She also recalled that 
staff incorporated some of the City of Portland’s fee scale and rules when developing 
Milwaukie’s tree code.  

Mr. Passarelli and Mayor Gamba discussed tree removal costs and code exemptions 
for tree removal fees. Council President Falconer suggested that the tree code and 
city tree policies emphasize the public value of infrastructure projects when considering 
the removal of trees. Mayor Gamba agreed and believed it would help set a precedent 
for private development projects. Ms. Ober noted how staff could work to implement 
language about the public benefit. 

Mr. Passarelli discussed the new Meek Street stormwater detention facility which 
required the removal of 13 trees. He noted that the city had replanted over 40 trees as a 
mitigation effort on that project. Council President Falconer suggested the Meek 
Street project could be an example of analyzing a public benefit project. 

Mr. Passarelli reviewed the proposed fees for street and public trees. He reported that 
the code did not currently include a tree removal fee. He explained the proposed scaled 
rate fee structure based on the diameter of the tree. He reported that the Tree Board 
also proposed adding a requirement that when a tree is removed a tree should be 

10867

http://www.milwaukieoregon.gov/


CCSS – 8/11/2020 – Approved Minutes Page 2 of 4 

replanted or a fee should be paid to support a new planting at another location. Other 
proposed fees included a programmatic permit and an enforcement/restoration fee.     

Council President Falconer expressed appreciation for the fee in lieu of planting a tree 
but wondered why the city would charge a fee to plant a tree. Mr. Passarelli clarified 
there would not be a fee to plant a new tree. The Tree Board was recommending that if 
a tree had to be removed and a new tree could not be planted on the same property, 
then a fee-in-lieu of planting would be applied for a replacement tree to be planted 
elsewhere.  

The group noted scenarios in which different fees would be charged and the process to 
remove a tree. Mr. Passarelli expressed the Tree Board’s desire for trees to be valued 
as an asset and seen as a loss for the community when removed.  

Councilor Batey discussed the proposed review criteria and approval standards when 
the city decides to issue a tree removal permit. She asked if the city would charge a 
resident to remove a Tree of Heaven, which was on the noxious weed list. Ms. Rogers 
clarified that the proposed criteria and approval standards were for the removal of 
healthy, allowed, native species. She noted there was a separate list of situations for 
how to remove invasive or dead and diseased species.  

Council President Falconer wondered if there was a list of problematic trees that do 
not do well in certain areas. Mr. Passarelli explained the code currently referred to the 
Oregon noxious weed list and the only tree on that list was the Tree of Heaven. He 
noted the city’s public work standards listed other invasive species and the city could 
add reference to those standards in the MMC. Council President Falconer liked the 
idea of adding the reference to the standards and suggested changing the section title 
to “beneficial and healthy trees” to make it clear.  

The group discussed different tree species that can be problematic. Mr. Passarelli 
noted the city had updated the street tree list to capture concerns about invasive 
species. He explained this proposal was for trees that were appropriate to plant in the 
public right of way (ROW) and in public spaces in Milwaukie, and it was not an 
exhaustive list. Council President Falconer did not want a homeowner to be hit with a 
large fee for removing a healthy but invasive problematic tree. The group noted the list 
should be continuously updated, especially as the climate changes. 

The group discussed the street tree list and how to determine when a homeowner 
would not have to pay to remove a problematic tree. Ms. Dake reported that the Tree 
Board did not want a nuisance tree species list but wanted to give urban foresters more 
discretion.     

Councilor Batey suggested the city do public outreach to explain about tree permits 
and ROW rules. Mayor Gamba agreed. 

Mr. Passarelli explained how the Tree Board appraised a tree’s value. He noted the 
associated fees did not capture the additional benefits trees provide. The group 
discussed how a tree’s appraisal value was calculated.    

Mr. Passarelli discussed the Tree Board’s proposed fee exemptions for hazardous 
trees, minor maintenance, and public improvement. He explained the proposed fees 
were for when someone intentionally damages a tree to make it a hazard.    

Councilor Hyzy pointed out that there was an arts tax that the city must pay when 
purchasing new buildings and she wondered if the city should apply that standard to 

10868



CCSS – 8/11/2020 – Approved Minutes Page 3 of 4 

trees. The group noted the city also paid money for art in the new library. Ms. Ober 
agreed Councilor Hyzy’s question was a good policy question for Council and noted that 
if such a fee or tax was added now, it would be on top of the costs already calculated for 
current Safe Access for Everyone (SAFE) projects. She said staff could calculate what 
the costs could be for future projects. She noted staff’s work to not remove trees and 
suggested that if money was collected from fees they could go into a tree fund for future 
tree replanting projects. The group discussed potential benefits of a tree removal fee. 
Ms. Ober said staff would bring back policy options for Council to review. 

Mr. Passarelli explained the programmatic permits that the Tree Board proposed. He 
noted that Portland had a structure where utilities, like Portland General Electric (PGE), 
were required to pay a fee, provide public notice to the neighborhood and nearby 
property owners about tree trimming maintenance, and follow tree trimming standards. 
He confirmed that Milwaukie did not currently charge a permit fee and there was no 
required public notice. He noted that Portland had a five-year program permit and 
explained why Milwaukie was proposing a two-year permit.  

Mr. Passarelli discussed proposed language about low income assistance and how the 
city could exempt a property owner from the fees based on income. Council President 
Falconer suggested the language be reworded to clarify that available city funds be 
used to assist with tree removal specifically and if someone meets a certain income 
threshold the city manager may exempt the other fees. Ms. Ober commented that 
Council President Falconer’s suggestion would be consistent with other city policies. 

The group discussed the current median household income. Council believed that the 
policy should be based on Milwaukie’s median household income, not the Portland 
Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA).  

Ms. Rogers discussed the inequitable distribution of trees in relation to low income, 
Black, Indigenous, People of Color (BIPOC), and marginalized communities across the 
United States. She noted the public health benefits that trees provide. She reviewed 
maps from Portland’s equitable urban forest tree planting strategy that showed lower 
income areas had less trees. She provided a map of Milwaukie’s tree cover in relation to 
low-income census data. She noted the importance of street trees to balance out heavy 
pavement areas and observed that the city had more control over ensuring a shared 
access to tree canopies by way of providing street trees in the public ROW. 

Councilor Batey asked if there was any discussion about cutting trees during nesting 
season. She noted conversations she had with arborists and was curious to hear the 
Tree Board’s thoughts about seasonal tree cutting. She also reported hearing that oak 
trees should have been planted at the Meek Street project area.  

Mr. Passarelli commented on the types of trees that were planted at the Meek Street 
project. Councilors Batey and Hyzy and Ms. Rogers discussed the climate that oak 
trees grow best in. Ms. Rogers noted the importance of educating the public about 
choosing the right tree for the right place. Mr. Passarelli observed that having diverse 
tree species was helpful. The group discussed different types of trees. 

Mayor Gamba expressed his excitement and appreciation for the Tree Board’s work. 
He was concerned about the slow process in establishing the tree code for private 
property. The group noted that the Comprehensive Plan Implementation Committee 
(CPIC) work called for addressing it. 

10869



CCSS – 8/11/2020 – Approved Minutes  Page 4 of 4 

 

Councilor Hyzy shared Mayor Gamba’s concerns. She remembered Portland’s 
process for developing a tree code and reported that developers cut down many trees 
before the tree code was established. She was enthusiastic about Milwaukie’s robust 
process and hoped that once the code was written the review process would not be 
dragged out.  

Councilor Batey suggested that the city’s tree outreach and education process could 
highlight heritage trees while promoting the value of trees.     

The group discussed the timeline in adopting new code language. 

Council President Falconer noted missed opportunities where trees could be planted. 
She hoped the Tree Board could work with the Public Safety Advisory Committee 
(PSAC) and the city engineering department to coordinate tree planting opportunities in 
the public ROW. Councilor Hyzy noted conversations she had with neighbors about 
the importance of engaging landowners to make sure people felt included and had a 
choice and a role in the success of street trees.   

Mr. Passarelli remarked that the Tree Board would discuss Council’s feedback at their 
next meeting and adjust the proposed code language.     

 

2. Carbon-Free Product Exploration, continued – Discussion  

Ms. Rogers referenced the city’s climate action goals and noted the city’s work with 
PGE and NW Natural Gas on exploring the development of a carbon-free energy 
product. She provided an overview of the city’s climate action work, including the 
advocacy of changes to the international building code. She reported that building 
energy is the number one source of emissions in Milwaukie. She explained that the 
city’s new Home Energy Score (HES) program would begin on October 1 and more 
information could be found on the city’s website.      

Ms. Rogers provided details on the city’s work with PGE to explore an opt-out option for 
the carbon-free electricity product. She explained how the product would help meet 
Milwaukie’s carbon-free electricity goal and would be designed to match the 
community’s preference. She noted the legislative requirements and other items to 
consider when developing such a product.   

The group thanked Ms. Rogers and Mr. Passarelli for their work in pioneering these 
types of programs.   

2. Adjourn 

Mayor Gamba adjourned the meeting at 7:16 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

   

Amy Aschenbrenner, Administrative Specialist II   

 

 

10870




